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CONDITION

The five buildings in this district belong to a local variant

of the Greek Revival, combining the crow-step parapet with standard
simplified Grecian features. There is virtually no ornamentatigﬁ

on the exterior of any of these houses, except the discreet con-
centric circles at the ends of the lintels of 33 West Fourth
Street. Most of the street fronts have handsome but simple

cornices; 31 West Fourth has the only entrance with any pretensilons,
an austere framework of Doric pilasters and entablature around
the recessed entry. The Ficklin House and the Bierbower House
have almost square doorways; moldings are set within the wall-
plane and there are both sidelights and two-light transoms. The
Ficklin House features an elegant wrought-iron railing on its

first-story balcony; the double galleries of the Bierbower are
much plainer. The unique feature of all these houses is the

stepped gables that give them a considerable amount of character
particularly as they seem to conform to the steep slope on which
the buildings are set.

33

-

The houses have in common brick construction, generally with stg
foundations. Except for their parapets, the end walls tend to
be plain. Windows are large and regularly spaced.
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The Ficklin House is a two-story brick house on a raised base-
ment facing toward the river that allows for the steep slope of
the site. The main block is five bays wide with a simple Greek
Revival doorway (narrow sidelights and transom divided by slen-
der square piers) recessed, like the windows, within the surface
of the wall. A wide but plain entablature and an attractive,
somewhat Grecian wrought-iron railed balcony with access from
the elongated windows of the main floor, run the length of the
front of the building, terminating abruptly at the ends. The
balcony can be reached from ground level by a long flight of
stone steps and creates a shelter for the half-sized basement
windows below. The regularly aligned windows and long horizontals
form a balanced composition against the steep hillside.

The side walls of the front block, visually unrelated to the
river facade, are topped by centered chimneys and descending
parapets which hide the end gables and seem to emphasize the
hilly site.

An enclosed frame porch, probably originally an open gallery, i$

attached to the rear of the upper story; it was enclosed in the

early 1900s. A separate structure which abuts the front block,
(continued)
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

In 1815 Maysville's importance as a commercial center was
increasing. It was where immigrants coming from Pittsburgh
down the Ohio River often entered Kentucky and where exports
left and imports entered the northern part of the State.
German immigrants settled all along the Ohio River. They left
evidences of their influence in the architecture of the city
of Maysville. Parapets and stepped gables characteristic of
river towns but unusual elsewhere in Kentucky are evident all
over the city.

One of the most concentrated areas of this type of architecture
is on a hillside overlooking Maysville and the Ohio River. The
Ficklin House was built circa 1840 as was the Bierbower House.
The five houses located on West Fourth Street were constructed
between 1840 and 1850. 33 and 31 West Fourth Street are row
houses; according to a deed 33 West Fourth Street was standing
in 1847. 29 West Fourth Street, constructed in 1849, is
probably the latest house in the district.

(1) Ficklin House. Ferry licenses were granted to J. K. Fickli;
in 1818 and 1823. Both ferries were discontinued in 1826.
Joseph Ficklin was an attorney in 1835 when he represented
George Bierly in a legal matter. The Ficklin family, owners of
a dry goods store (Ficklin & Cox) in the 1860s and 1870s, lived
in this house. It may be assumed that this part of the Ficklin
family built the house.

The carriage house behind the Ficklin House is a remnant of the
era when the carriage was the most frequently used mode of
transportation. The structure was also used as a pickling hous
Local legend has it that the buildings in this area were used
as a fort, and Union troops were quartered there during the
Civil War.

(2) Bierbower House. The Bierbowers were carriage makers.
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29 West Fourth Street - Elmer Rigg, Washington, Kentucky
31 West Fourth Street - Dr. Grierson, Edgemont Road, Maysville,Ky

33 West Fourth Street - Mrs. George Kinsler, 2225 Ronda Road,
Cincinnati, Ohio

Bierbower - Ed and Christine Maker, Fourth Street, Maysville, Ky.

Ficklin House - Hayswood Hospital Trustees, Fourth Street,
Maysville, Kentucky
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thus constituting an ell, is of brick and stone. 1Its construc-
tion is said to antedate 1825.

The fact that a large single house (Ficklin House), a double
house (Bierbower), two asymmetrical '"town houses" (31 & 33 West
Fourth) and a more modest cottage (29 West Fourth) are included
makes this small area a compendium of variations on this type
of functional but dignified vernacular.

The buildings are all in good condition, with only slight
alterations to the rear, such as the enclosed gallery of the
Ficklin House.

Between the Ficklin House and the Bierbower House is located a
much newer structure which is used as a nurses' dormitory for
the local hospital. Although out of keeping with houses listed,
it does not seriously interfere with their period character.

The district, set back on the hillside, has a proximity to the
commercial center of Maysville.

On the southeast end the district is bordered by a hospital
complex and on the northeast the district is bordered by a
Victorian house and a smaller bungalow. These houses do not
exhibit the parapets characteristic of other structures in the
area. On the west the street leading to the commercial area
to the north is the boundary of the district. 7~
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They were also strong supporters of the Union during the Civil
War. 1In 1860 F, H. Bierbower helped to sponsor a newspaper
advertisement supporting the Union cause. J, C, Bierbower
obtained the rank of captain in the Union Army.

In 1854 an explosion ripped through 800 kegs of powder at a
powder magazine on the east side of Maysville on the Maysville
and Lexington Turnpike Road. - Several houses on Fourth Street
near the scene of the explosion were damaged. The J. Bierbower
House was in ruins. The total damage in the city ranged between
$50,000 and $75,000.

(3) 29 West Fourth Street. This house was built by Charles M.
Dodson. 1In 1862 R, H. Newell owned the house. He was a dealer
in wines and liquors.

(4) 31 West Fourth Street was once owned by Ezekiel Dimitt, a
carpenter and builder.
Building Savings Association in 1872.
attorney, owned the house in 1885.

M. C. Hutchins, an

(5) 33 West Fourth Street. This house was standing in 1847.
has been owned by Edward Cox, John F. Mitchell, and Robert
Andrews. The last, who owned the house in 1865, was one of the
incorporators of the Maysville Street Railroad and Transfer
Company in 1868.

It

The architecture of this district is one of great significance.
The stepped gables and descending parapets were fostered by the

materials to eastern cities promoting the county of Mason to
these immigrants. Many of the immigrants found their way to
Maysville and Mason County and added their new ideas and styles
to the areas.
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An E. Dimitt was director of the Maysvill

great influx of immigrants that arrived in Maysville in the 18003.
Societies such as the "Washington Emigrant Society" provided writ
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